
 

PLEASE NOTE: Not all of the above items may necessarily be acted on and individual items may be acted on out of order.  In accordance with RSMo. Section 610.021, the Board of Aldermen may vote to go into 
Executive Session during this meeting to discuss matters of litigation, legal actions, and communications from the City Attorney, personnel matters, employee information and real estate discussions.  In order to 
accommodate all persons wishing to attend this meeting, the Board of Aldermen may vote to adjourn this meeting and continue it at the St. Ann Community Center, #1 Community Center, Dr. St. Ann, MO 63074.   
 
Posted: 1-31-2017 @ 3:00PM & Revised 2-3-2017 & 3:00PM 
 

 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING 
IN BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS  

10405 ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD 
ST. ANN, MISSOURI  63074 
February 6, 2017 @ 7:00PM 

 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

 
1. Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2.  Roll Call  
 
3.  Communications/Public Comment  
       a. Approval of Minutes 

1.  1-3-17 Regular Meeting Minutes, 11-28-2016 Committee Meeting 
Minutes 

  b. Appointments 
    1.  City Treasurer – Jennifer Ostmann 
 c.  Public Comment – Agenda Items  
 
4. Introduction of Bills & Resolutions 

a. BILL 3129 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ACCEPT PROPOSALS FROM INOVATIONS ARCHITECTURAL SIGNS 
AND OFFICE FURNITURE RESOURCES FOR SIGNAGE AND OFFICE 
FURNITURE. 

b. BILL 3130 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ARMSTRONG TEASDALE FOR 
BOND COUNSEL SERVICES. 

c. BILL 3131 – AN ORDIANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH ECO-STIE FOR A MONOPOLE 
TOWER GROUND LEASE.  

 d.  RESOLUTION 2017-2 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, 
MISSOURI, CALLING FOR THE JOINT ESTABLISHMENT OF A CITY-
WIDE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, TO JOIN THE ST. CHARLES ROCK 
ROAD TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, IN A PETITION 
TO CREATE THE CITY-WIDE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT; AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ACTIONS RELATED 
THERETO. 

 
5.   Approval of Monthly Reports & Warrant  
 
6. Public Comment – Non-Agenda Items 
 
7. Adjournment 
 



 

 
 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 3a 
 
 
TO: The Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen  
 
DATE: February 6, 2017 
 
RE: Communications/Public Comment 
 
The minutes are attached.  We also have the Appointment of Jennifer Ostmann as Treasurer to 
replace Jim Stegman. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator/City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 3, 2017 1 

BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS 

10405 ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD 
ST. ANN, MISSOURI 

 

January 3, 2017 
 

 
The 1454th Regular Meeting of the Board of Aldermen of the City of St. Ann, Missouri, was held 
at St. Ann City Hall on Tuesday, January 3, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Alderman Crabtree led the Board and Audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Those in attendance were, Mayor Corcoran, Aldermen: 
 
Roll Call: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
Also Present: 
 City Attorney: Steve Garrett 

City Administrator/City Clerk: Matt Conley 
 Chief of Police: Chief Jimenez 
 Director of Public Services: Shawn Seymour 
 Director of Parks & Recreation: Tim Younker 
 Deputy City Clerk/Deputy Collector: Christina Rogers 
 
COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENT 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Motion was made by Alderman Asinger, seconded by Alderman Sparks to approve the minutes 
of the September 28, 2016 Committee meeting.  All in favor. 
 
Motion was made by Alderman Sparks, seconded by Alderman Crabtree to approve the minutes 
of the November 1, 2016 Committee meeting.  All in favor. 
 
Motion was made by Alderman Murphy, seconded by Alderman Asinger to approve the minutes 
of the December 5, 2016 Regular meeting.  All in favor. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – AGENDA ITEMS 
Hearing none. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF BILLS & RESOLUTIONS 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3125 for the first time. 
 
FIRST READING OF BILL NO. 3125 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO DISPOSE OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY. 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3125 for the second time. 
 

 
 

Approved: ________ 
 

 



January 3, 2017 2 

SECOND READING OF BILL NO. 3125 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO DISPOSE OF CERTAIN SURPLUS PROPERTY. 
 
Alderman Sparks made motion, seconded by Alderman Murphy to approve Bill No. 3125. 
 
Roll Call for passage: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
8-Aye 0-No 
 
Bill No. 3125 becomes Ordinance No. 3035. 
 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3126 for the first time. 
 
FIRST READING OF BILL NO. 3126 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO APPLY FOR A MUNICIPAL PARK PLANNING GRANT. 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3126 for the second time. 
 
SECOND READING OF BILL NO. 3126 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO APPLY FOR A MUNICIPAL PARK PLANNING GRANT. 
 
Alderman Sparks made motion, seconded by Alderman Asinger to approve Bill No. 3126. 
 
Roll Call for passage: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
8-Aye 0-No 
 
Bill No. 3126 becomes Ordinance No. 3036. 
 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3127 for the first time. 
 
FIRST READING OF BILL NO. 3127 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE CROSSINGS AT 
NORTHWEST CONDOMINIUM PLAT 4 IN THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI. 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3127 for the second time. 
 
SECOND READING OF BILL NO. 3127 – AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE CROSSINGS 
AT NORTHWEST CONDOMINIUM PLAT 4 IN THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI. 
 
Alderman Murphy made motion, seconded by Alderman Asinger to approve Bill No. 3127. 
 
 



January 3, 2017 3 

Roll Call for passage: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
8-Aye 0-No 
 
Bill No. 3127 becomes Ordinance No. 3037. 
 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3128 for the first time. 
 
FIRST READING OF BILL NO. 3128 – AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 230.030 
AND ADOPTING A NEW SECTION 230.030 OF THE ST. ANN MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO THE FAIR HOUSING COMMISSION. 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Bill No. 3128 for the second time. 
 
SECOND READING OF BILL NO. 3128 – AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 230.030 
AND ADOPTING A NEW SECTION 230.030 OF THE ST. ANN MUNICIPAL CODE 
PERTAINING TO THE FAIR HOUSING COMMISSION. 
 
Alderman Murphy made motion, seconded by Alderman Crabtree to approve Bill No. 3128. 
 
Roll Call for passage: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 
 
8-Aye 0-No 
 
Bill No. 3128 becomes Ordinance No. 3038. 
 
 
Mayor Corcoran read Resolution 2017-1  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, 
PROVIDING FOR THE HOLDING OF A MUNICIPAL ELECTION WITHIN THE CITY OF ST. 
ANN, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, ON APRIL 4, 2017 ON A BALLOT PROPOSITION 
TO CONSIDER AN INCREASE IN PROPERTY TAX TO MAINTAIN AND PROVIDE POLICE 
SERVICES; AND REPEALING THAT PORTION OF THE EXISTING PROPERTY TAX FOR 
MAINTENANCE OF PARKS AND PARKS SERVICES. 
 
Alderman Murphy made motion, seconded by Alderman Asinger to approve Resolution 2017-1. 
 
Roll Call for passage: 
 Asinger Aye Murphy Aye 
 Poelker Aye Croney Aye 
 Dirck Aye Crabtree Aye 
 Sparks Aye Triplett Aye 



January 3, 2017 4 

 
8-Aye 0-No 
 
Resolution 2017-1 passed 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MONTHLY REPORTS & WARRANT LIST 
Alderman Crabtree made motion to approve the monthly reports and warrant lists, seconded by 
Alderman Sparks.  All in favor. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Anne Cashel – 24 Constance Ct. 
Ms. Cashel voiced concern with the SAPA sign that was removed from the right-of-way and 
questioned if the sign for Walgreen’s was also removed. 
 
Discussion ensued that included: letters were sent to all ROW violators and removed; sign code 
has a list of the types of signs that are prohibited: MoDOT has regulations and have taken down 
numerous signs. 
 
Ms. Cashel communicated she was making sure SAPA was not being singled out. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion made by Alderman Murphy, seconded by Alderman Crabtree to adjourn meeting.  All in 
favor. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
ATTEST:      /S/  MICHAEL G. CORCORAN 

Mayor 
 

/S/ MATT CONLEY 
City Clerk 
 

APPROVED this 6th day of February, 2017. 



 

 
 

 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 4a, b, c, & d. 
 
TO: The Honorable Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen 
 
DATE:  February 6, 2017 
 
RE: Introduction of Bills & Resolutions 
 
They are attached.  
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator/City Clerk



 

 
 

 

 
 
First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3129      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ACCEPT PROPOSALS FROM 
INOVATIONS ARCHITECTURAL SIGNS AND OFFICE FURNITURE RESOURCES FOR SIGNAGE 

AND OFFICE FURNITURE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3130      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH ARMSTRONG TEASDALE FOR BOND COUNSEL SERVICES. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 

First reading:  ________ 
 
Second reading:  ________ 
 
Introduced by __________________ 
 
BILL NO. 3131      ORDINANCE NO. _______  

 
AN ORDIANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

WITH ECO-STIE FOR A MONOPOLE TOWER GROUND LEASE. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Administrator is authorized to accept the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

 
Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this _____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

     ____________________________ 
      Presiding Officer 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of _______________, 2017. 
 
       
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Michael G. Corcoran 
      Mayor, City of St. Ann 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, CALLING FOR THE JOINT 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A CITY-WIDE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, TO JOIN THE ST. CHARLES ROCK 
ROAD TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, IN A PETITION TO CREATE THE 
CITY-WIDE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT; AND AUTHORIZING 
CERTAIN ACTIONS RELATED THERETO 

              

WHEREAS, the City of St. Ann, Missouri (the “City”) is a local transportation authority within 
the meaning of Section 238.202.1(4) of the Missouri Transportation Development District Act, 
Sections 238.200 to 238.280 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Board of Aldermen previously passed and approved Resolution                          
No. 2013-3, that provided for the City to join the Bi-State Development Agency of the Missouri-Illinois 
Metropolitan District, doing business as Metro (the “Metro”) in the filing of a petition for the creation of 
the St. Charles Rock Road Transportation Development District (the “Original TDD”) for the purpose of 
funding, promoting, planning, designing, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating or assisting 
in various projects involving City streets intersecting with St. Charles Rock Road and various projects 
involving bus stops along St. Charles Rock Road, along Old St. Charles Rock Road adjacent to The 
Crossings at Northwest and along Lindbergh Boulevard adjacent to The Crossings at Northwest 
(collectively, the “Original Transportation Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2014, the Original TDD was created in accordance with the Act 
and such Original TDD is funded by a transportation development district sales tax (the “Original TDD 
Sales Tax”) at a rate of up to three quarters of one percent (3/4%) on the receipts from the sale at retail of 
all tangible personal property or taxable services at retail within the Original TDD that are subject to 
taxation pursuant to Section 238.235 of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, Original TDD is a local transportation authority within the meaning of                          
Section 238.202.1(4) of the Act; and 

WHEREAS, two or more local transportation authorities are authorized under Section 238.207.5 
of the Act to adopt resolutions calling for the joint establishment of a transportation development district 
for the purpose of funding, promoting, planning, designing, constructing, improving, maintaining and 
operating one or more projects or assisting in such activity in accordance with the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to join the Original TDD in filing a Petition for the Creation of a 
Transportation Development District in substantially the form of Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Petition”) to create the St. Ann City-Wide Transportation 
Development District (the “District”) for the purpose of funding, promoting, planning, designing, 
constructing, improving, maintaining and operating one or more projects or assisting in such activity 
involving the Original Transportation Project, and the repair, maintenance and construction of all City 
streets and installation of additional bus shelters or enhancement of existing bus shelters along St. Charles 
Rock Road within the City, which bus shelters may be lighted shelters or smart shelters, and improved 
transit access to The Crossing at Northwest Development, such as a transit station or enhanced bus shelter 
(the “Additional Transportation Project”, together with the Original Transportation Project, the 
“Transportation Project”); and  



 2  

 

WHEREAS, the Petition provides that, subject to approval of the qualified voters within the 
District, the Transportation Project will be funded initially through the imposition of a transportation 
development district sales tax (the “TDD Sales Tax”) at a rate of up to one percent (1%) on the receipts 
of all retail sales made in the District which are subject to taxation pursuant to Section 238.236 of the Act; 
and  

WHEREAS, upon the District’s creation and in accordance with the Act, the TDD Sales Tax 
imposed by the District within its boundaries and the Original TDD Sales Tax imposed by the Original 
TDD within its boundaries will both be in effect; and 

WHEREAS, the administrative costs and obligations of the Original TDD would continue to be 
paid by the Original TDD from a portion of the net revenues of the Original TDD Sales Tax, and the 
administrative costs and the costs of the Transportation Project would be paid or reimbursed by the 
District from a portion of the net revenues of the TDD Sales Tax; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Original TDD will adopt a resolution calling for the 
creation of the District, approving the Additional Transportation Project and authorizing the Original 
TDD to join the City in the Petition to create the District, which District will include the boundaries of the 
Original TDD and the Original Transportation Project; and  

WHEREAS, the City, Metro, the Original TDD and, upon its formation, the District intend to 
enter into a Second Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement whereby the 
parties will utilize funds of the District to complete certain portions of the Transportation Project; and  

WHEREAS, the City desire to cooperate with Metro and the Original TDD and, upon its 
formation, the District for the purpose of carrying out the planning, development, acquisition, 
construction and financing of the Transportation Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Board of Aldermen of the City hereby calls for the joint establishment of the 
District with the Original TDD in accordance with the Petition together with all further City actions as 
may be necessary or convenient to cause the District to be so formed and established under the Act. 

Section 2. The Board of Aldermen of the City hereby approves the Additional 
Transportation Project, and authorizes the City to join with the Original TDD in the filing of the Petition 
for the purpose of funding, promoting, planning, designing, constructing, improving, maintaining and 
operating or assisting in the Transportation Project.  

Section 3. The Board of Aldermen of the City hereby authorizes and directs Armstrong 
Teasdale LLP to execute the Petition and to take such other steps as are necessary to create and 
implement the District in accordance with the Act. 

Section 4. The portions of this Resolution shall be severable.  In the event that any portion 
of this Resolution is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remaining portions of 
this Resolution are valid, unless the court finds the valid portions of this Resolution are so essential and 
inseparably connected with and dependent upon the void portion that it cannot be presumed that the 
Board of Aldermen of the City would have enacted the valid portions without the invalid ones, or unless 
the court finds that the valid portions standing alone are incomplete and are incapable of being executed 
in accordance with the legislative intent. 



 3  

 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in effect immediately following its passage by the Board 
of Aldermen of the City and its execution as provided by law. 

Passed by the Board of Aldermen for the City of St. Ann, Missouri, this ____ day of _______________, 
2017. 

 

_____________________________ 
Presiding Officer 

(SEAL) 

ATTEST:  

 

_____________________________ 
City Clerk 

 

Signed this ___ day of _______________, 2017.  

 
 
 
__________________________  
Michael G. Corcoran 
Mayor, City of St. Ann 

Attest: 

 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 



  

 

Exhibit A 

Form of Petition 

(Attached hereto.) 



 

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

21ST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
 

IN RE:  THE CREATION OF THE  
ST. ANN CITY-WIDE TRANSPORTATION 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
 
CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI, a fourth-class 
city, 
 
AND 
 
ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, a political subdivision, 
 
 Petitioners, 

v.                                  

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, 
 
SERVE: Genevieve Frank, County Clerk 
  St. Louis County 
  41 South Central Avenue 
  Clayton, Missouri  63105 
   
AND 
 
BI-STATE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE 
MISSOURI-ILLINOIS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT 
 
SERVE: Aliah Holman, Secretary  
  One Metropolitan Square 
  211 North Broadway, Suite 700 
                           St. Louis, Missouri  63102 
                           
AND 
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, 
 
SERVE: Pamela Harlan, Secretary 
  Missouri Highways and   
  Transportation Commission 
  105 West Capitol Avenue 
  Jefferson City, Missouri  65102 
  
              Respondents. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)

 
 
Cause No. 
 
Division No. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PETITION FOR THE CREATION OF A  
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

COMES NOW Petitioners (as herein defined), pursuant to the Missouri Transportation 

Development District Act, Sections 238.200 to 238.280 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended 

(the “Act”), petition this Circuit Court of the County of St. Louis, Missouri (this “Court”) for the purpose 

of creating a transportation development district to be known as the St. Ann City-Wide Transportation 

Development District (the “District”), and in support thereof state as follows: 

THE PARTIES 

1. Petitioner City of St. Ann, Missouri (“St. Ann”), acting by and through its Board of 

Aldermen, is a fourth-class city and a “local transportation authority” within the meaning of 

Section 238.202.1(4) of the Act, and is acting in its official capacity pursuant to Section 238.207.5 of the 

Act.   

2. Petitioner St. Charles Rock Road Transportation Development District (the “Original TDD”, 

together with St. Ann, collectively, the “Petitioners”), acting by and through its Board of Directors, is a 

political subdivision and a “local transportation authority” within the meaning of Section 238.202.1(4) of 

the Act, and is acting in its official capacity pursuant to Section 238.207.5 of the Act. 

3. Respondent Bi-State Development Agency of the Missouri-Illinois Metropolitan District 

(“Bi-State”) is an interstate compact agency and a “local transportation authority” within the meaning of 

Section 238.202.1(4) of the Act. 

4. Respondent St. Louis County, Missouri (the “County”) is a home rule charter county of the 

first classification, and is a “local transportation authority” within the meaning of Section 238.202.1(4) of 

the Act. 

5. Respondent Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) is the 

constitutional authority responsible for constructing and maintaining the highway system of the State of 

Missouri, and is a necessary party under Section 238.207.5(3)(c) of the Act. 



BACKGROUND 

6. On [__________ __], 2017, the Board of Aldermen of St. Ann approved a resolution attached 

hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference, calling for the joint establishment of the 

District pursuant to Section 238.207.5(3) of the Act to fund, construct and implement the Transportation 

Project (as herein defined). 

7. On [__________ __], 2017, the Board of Directors of the Original TDD approved a 

resolution attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated herein by reference, calling for the joint 

establishment of the District pursuant to Section 238.207.5(3) of the Act to fund, construct and implement 

the Transportation Project. 

PETITION REQUIREMENTS 

8. Petitioners desire to create the proposed District for the sole purpose of funding, promoting, 

planning, designing, constructing, improving, maintaining and operating one or more “project” within the 

meaning of Section 238.202.1(5) of the Act or assisting in such activity (the “Transportation Project”), 

which Transportation Project shall be composed of the “Original Transportation Project” and the 

“Additional Transportation Project” each as described on Exhibit E, attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference.  

9. The name of each local transportation authority within the proposed District is as follows:  

the County, Bi-State, St. Ann and the Original TDD.  The names of the local transportation authorities 

affected by the Transportation Project are as follows:  St. Ann, Bi-State and the Original TDD. 

10. Pursuant to Section 238.207.5 of the Act, St. Ann and the Original TDD have adopted 

resolutions calling for the joint establishment of the proposed District and, as such, the governing body of 

either St. Ann or the Original TDD may file this Petition for the Creation of a Transportation 

Development District (this “Petition”).  The resolution of the governing body of St. Ann calling for the 

joint establishment of the proposed District is set forth as Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference, and the resolution of the governing body of the Original TDD calling for the joint 

establishment of the proposed District is set forth as Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated by 



reference.   

11. The name and address of each respondent is as follows: 

a. Bi-State Metropolitan Agency of the Missouri-Illinois District 
One Metropolitan Square 
211 North Broadway, Suite 700 
St. Louis, Missouri  63102 

b. Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission 
105 West Capitol Avenue 
P.O. Box 270 
Jefferson City, Missouri  65102 
 

c. St. Louis County, Missouri 
41 South Central Avenue 
Clayton, Missouri  63105 
 

12. A specific description of the proposed boundaries of the proposed District is set forth as 

Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and a map illustrating such boundaries is 

set forth as Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated by reference. 

13. The proposed District is contiguous within the meaning of Section 238.207.5(2) of the Act. 

14. Petitioners propose that the Transportation Project be undertaken by the proposed District.  A 

general description of the Transportation Project is set forth as Exhibit E, attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference.  The approximate location of the Transportation Project is as follows: within or 

adjacent to the municipal boundaries of St. Ann, which are as described on Exhibit C, attached hereto 

and incorporated herein by reference, and as illustrated on Exhibit D, attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference.  

15. The name of the proposed District will be the St. Ann City-Wide Transportation 

Development District. 

16. The board of directors of the proposed District will be composed of four members, which 

shall consist of the presiding officers of St. Ann and the Original TDD and one person designated by the 

governing body of each of St. Ann and the Original TDD.  

17. The terms of office of each presiding officer serving as director of the proposed District shall 

coincide with the terms of office of such presiding officer and, upon the assumption of office of a new 



presiding officer, such individual shall automatically succeed his predecessor as a member of the board of 

directors of the proposed District.  The term of office of each person designated by the governing body of 

a local transportation authority to serve as a director of the proposed District shall be at the pleasure of the 

governing body appointing such person, and such person designated by the governing body of a local 

transportation authority may be removed by such governing body at any time with or without cause.  

Upon the removal, resignation or disqualification of such person, the governing body designating such 

person shall designate a successor director. 

18. MHTC may appoint one or more advisors to the board of directors of the proposed District as 

provided in Section 238.220.4 of the Act. 

19. The County may appoint one or more advisors to the board of directors of the proposed 

District as provided in Section 238.220.4 of the Act. 

20. Bi-State may appoint one or more advisors to the board of directors of the proposed District 

as provided in Section 238.220.4 of the Act. 

21. The Transportation Project will be funded initially through the imposition of a transportation 

development district sales tax (the “Sales Tax”) pursuant to Section 238.236 of the Act.  Pursuant to the 

Act, the proposed District may impose the Sales Tax upon approval of the qualified voters within the 

proposed District at a rate of one-eighth of one percent, one-fourth of one percent, three-eighths of one 

percent, one-half of one percent or one percent on the receipts from the sale at retail of all tangible 

personal property or taxable services at retail within the proposed District, if such property and services 

are subject to taxation by the State of Missouri pursuant to the provisions of Sections 144.010 to 144.525 

of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended.  The Petitioners desire to seek the approval of the 

qualified voters of the imposition of the Sales Tax at a rate not to exceed one percent (1%) for a period up 

to 40 years to (a) pay the costs of the Transportation Project; (b) reimburse the Petitioners for the costs of 

filing and defending this Petition as authorized by Section 238.217 of the Act; and (c) to pay the proposed 

District’s reasonable and actual cost of administering, collecting, enforcing and operating the proposed 

District, including costs incurred pursuant to Sections 238.222, 238.252, 238.255 and 238.272 of the Act. 



22. A portion of the District’s proposed boundaries will include all of the Original TDD.  

Pursuant to Section 238.235 of the Act, the Original TDD currently imposes a transportation development 

district sales tax at a rate of three-quarters of one percent (3/4%) on all taxable sales within its boundaries 

(the “Original TDD Sales Tax”).  Following the formation of the District and the imposition of the Sales 

Tax, both the Sales Tax and the Original TDD Sales Tax will be in effect within the boundaries of the 

Original TDD. 

23. The proposed District shall not be an undue burden on any owner of property within the 

proposed District and is not unjust or unreasonable. 

24. Pursuant to Section 238.212 of the Act, this Court’s Circuit Clerk shall give notice to the 

public by causing one or more newspapers of general circulation serving the County or portions thereof 

contained in the proposed District to publish once a week for four consecutive weeks a notice in 

substantially the form as provided in Section 238.212 of the Act. 

25. Petitioners desire that the Court also order a public hearing on the question of the creation 

and funding of the proposed District under such terms and conditions as the Court deems appropriate and 

that notice of such public hearing be given in the notice specified in Section 238.212.1 of the Act. 

WHEREFORE, the Petitioners request that this Court enter a judgment and decree pursuant to the 

Act as follows: 

A. Finding and certifying that the Petition is not legally defective and that the respondents have 

been duly served with process in this action; 

B. Finding and certifying that the proposed District is contiguous; 

C. Finding and certifying that the proposed District is not an undue burden on any owner of 

property within the proposed District and is not unjust or unreasonable;  

D. Finding and certifying that the proposed District, the development of the proposed 

Transportation Project and the proposed funding method are neither illegal nor unconstitutional;  



E. Ordering that a notice in substantially the form provided in Section 238.212.1 of the Act be 

published once a week for four consecutive weeks in one or more newspapers of general circulation 

serving the County or the portion thereof contained in the proposed District; 

F. Ordering that a public hearing on the question of the creation and funding of the proposed 

District be held under such terms and conditions as this Court deems appropriate and that notice of such 

public hearing be given in the notice specified in Section 238.212.1 of the Act; 

G. Certifying a single question regarding creation of the proposed District, development of the 

proposed Transportation Project and proposed funding of the Sales Tax for qualified voter approval 

pursuant to Section 283.210.2 of the Act, which single question shall be in substantially the form 

provided in Section 238.215.3 of the Act; and 

H. Calling for the single question to appear on the ballot at an election pursuant to                          

Section 238.216 of the Act and specifying the next regularly scheduled general, primary or special 

election day on which the ballot shall appear.  

Petitioners further request that this Court make any additional findings and orders and grant such 

other further relief which this Court deems necessary and proper. 

 ARMSTRONG TEASDALE LLP 
 

By: ____________________________________ 
Robert D. Klahr                                 #42718 
Angela L. Odlum                               #65380 
Armstrong Teasdale LLP 
7700 Forsyth Boulevard, Suite 1800 
St. Louis, Missouri 63105 
(314) 621-5070 
(314) 621-5065 (facsimile) 
 
Attorneys for Petitioner City of St. Ann, Missouri 

 
 

 



EXHIBIT A 

RESOLUTION OF PETITIONER CITY OF ST. ANN, MISSOURI 

[To be inserted.] 

 

 

  



 

EXHIBIT B 

RESOLUTION OF PETITIONER THE ST. CHARLES ROCK ROAD TRANSPORTATION 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

[To be inserted.] 



 

EXHIBIT C 

SPECIFIC DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 

 

The municipal boundaries of the City of St. Ann, Missouri as of January 1, 2017. 



 

MAP D

The bound

DEPICTING

daries of the p

EX

G BOUNDAR

proposed Dist

 

XHIBIT D 

RIES OF TH

trict are outlin

HE PROPOSE

ned as shown

ED DISTRIC

n on the map b

CT 

below. 



 

EXHIBIT E 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE TRANSPORTATION PROJECT 

The Transportation Project is composed of the Original Transportation Project (composed of the 
St. Ann Transportation Project I and the Metro Transportation Project I) and the Additional 
Transportation Project (composed of the St. Ann Transportation Project II and the Metro Transportation 
Project II).  A general description of the Transportation Project is as follows:  

Original Transportation Project 

St. Ann Transportation Project I 

1. Reconstruction or rehabilitation of streets, roadways, sidewalks, curbs and gutters that are located 
within or that directly benefit the District and are currently owned and maintained by the City of 
St. Ann, Missouri or will be owned or maintained by the City of St. Ann, Missouri upon 
redevelopment of Northwest Plaza; and  

 
2. Installation of streetscape, signage and street lighting that is located within or that directly 

benefits the District; and 
 
3. Installation and relocation of utility improvements and other right-of-way improvements along 

streets that are within or that directly benefit the District. 

Metro Transportation Project I 
 
1. Improve two northbound bus stops on Lindbergh Boulevard that are outside the District in 

Bridgeton adjacent to Northwest Plaza; 
 
2. Resurrect a bus stop on Old St. Charles Road adjacent to Northwest Plaza Mall. This stop was 

discontinued as the mall deteriorated. The stop will be needed for future employees in the area as 
new businesses open; 

 
3. Along Metrobus Route 35 – St. Charles Rock Road, improvements to the following westbound 

stops:  
 

(a) Geraldine Ave in front of Smoke-n-Stuff; 
 
(b) St. Gregory Lane in front of Quick Trip; 
 
(c) Industrial Drive; 
 
(d) International Plaza; 
 
(e) Ashby Road;  
 
(f) St. Timothy Lane; 
 
(g) East of Adie Road;  

 

4. Along Metrobus Route 35 – St. Charles Rock Road, improvements to the following eastbound 



 

stops: 

(a) Northwest Plaza Entrance in front of Jack in the Box; 
 
(b) Adie Road; 
 
(c) Cypress Road; 
 
(d) St. Timothy Lane; 
 
(e) Ashby Road; 
 
(f) San Jose; 
 
(g) St. Joachim; 
 
(h) St. Gregory Lane in front of Acapulco Lounge; and 
 
(i) Westridge Lane. 

 
The Original Transportation Project includes all costs necessary or incidental to plan, acquire, 

finance, develop, design, construct and maintain the St. Ann Transportation Project I and the Metro 
Transportation Project I, including without limitation:  

(a) costs of all estimates, studies, surveys, plans, drawings, reports, tests, specifications and 
other preliminary investigations of architects, appraisers, surveyors and engineers;  

(b) all professional service costs, including without limitation architectural, engineering, 
legal, financial, planning, design, development, project or construction management or 
special services incurred;  

(c) costs of acquisition, settlement and transfer of rights-of-way, easements, leases and other 
interests in real property;  

(d) costs of demolition of buildings and improvements; the clearing, excavation, earthwork, 
backfill and grading of land; site preparation; utility relocation; erosion, drainage and 
storm water control; storm sewers; and waterproofing;  

(e) costs of financing, underwriters’ fees and discounts, costs of printing any notes, bonds or 
other obligations and any official statements relating thereto, costs of credit enhancement, 
if any, interest, capitalized interest, debt service reserves and the fees of any rating 
agency, placement fees, costs of issuance;  

(f) costs of insurance, performance bonds and guarantees;  

(g) costs of pavement, curbs, striping, gutters, sidewalks, pavers, landscaping, planters, tree 
grates, irrigation and water features, bicycle racks, pedestrian benches, canopies, street 
lighting, retaining walls, shoring and piers, handrails, guardrails and other railing, 
including without limitation any architectural or decorative treatments related to such 
items; and  



 

(h) costs of construction of any bridge, street, road, highway, access road, interchange, 
intersection, signing, signalization and optimization thereof, parking lot, bus stop, station, 
or garage. 

* * * * * 

Additional Transportation Project 

St. Ann Transportation Project II 

1. Fund, promote, plan, design, construct, improve, maintain, and operate one or more “project” (as 
defined in the Act) or to assist in such activity including, but not limited to, the repair, 
maintenance, construction and reconstruction of all streets and roadways within St. Ann 
including, but not limited to, the following: Abdo Drive, Adie Road, the alley from Community 
Center Drive to Cypress Road, Ashby Place Lane, Ashby Road, Baltimore Avenue, Bellecote 
Avenue, Bernice Avenue, Boylston Drive, Boylston Hill Court, Breckenridge Road, Buder Court, 
Cabana Club Drive, Camshire Court, Carlow Place, Chaucer Avenue, Cavan Drive, Charles 
Place, Colin Court, Community Center Drive, Constance Court, Country Lane, Crestshire Lane, 
Dixie Drive, Douglass Court, Dundee Place, Eastridge Lane, Easy Court, Easy Street, Edgemont 
Court, Elgasser Lane, Esseldale Drive, West Executive Drive, Fairway Court, Farview Avenue, 
Farview Estates Drive, Florence Avenue, Fox Hall Court, Fulton Way,  Galahad Drive, Gayle 
Avenue, Georgetown Farm Court, Geraldine Avenue, Gertrude Avenue, Glenwood Court, High 
Drive, Hobday Avenue, the Holtwick Lane alley from Wright Avenue to Geraldine Avenue, 
Imperial Gardens Drive, Industrial Drive, International Plaza Drive, Isabelle Court, Ivan Avenue, 
Jane Avenue, Janice Court, Jeremiah Court, June Drive, Killdare Court, Kingbee Place, Kodiak 
Drive, Krem Court, Krem Drive, La Vista Court, La Vista Drive, Lansing Drive, Lee Lane, Liana 
Lane, Link Road, Little Flower Lane, Litz Avenue, Livingston Avenue, Long Drive, Lorraine 
Avenue, Lucille Avenue, Lynros Court, Lynros Drive, Marmary Lane, Mary Ann Court, Mary 
Jane Court, Maxwell Place, Mercer Court, Mert Avenue, Millwood Avenue, Mitchell Court, 
Modesto Lane, Morrow Drive, O’Hare Drive, Oak Pointe Drive, Old St. Charles Road, Orchard 
Avenue, Parc Chalet Drive, Pear Tree Lane, Pearl Harbor Drive, Quebec Court, Ridgecrest Drive, 
Ronald Drive, San Carlos Lane, San Jose Lane, Shamrock Lane, Sims Avenue, St. Agnes Lane, 
St. Ambrose Lane, St. Ann Lane, St. Anthony Lane, St. Arsene Lane, St. Arthur Lane, St. 
Augustine Court, St. Barbara Lane, St. Bernard Lane, St. Blasé Lane, St. Boniface Lane, St. 
Bridget Lane, St. Cecelia Lane, St. Christopher Lane, St. Clement Lane, St. Clovis Lane, St. 
Cosmos Lane, St. Damian Lane, St. Daniel Lane, St. David Lane, St. Dolores Drive, St. Dennis 
Lane, St. Dismas Court, St. Dominic Lane, St. Donald Lane, St. Edmund Court, St. Edmund 
Lane, St. Francis Court, St. Francis Lane, St. Genevieve Lane, St. Girard Lane, St. Gregory 
Court, St. Gregory Lane, St. Helen Lane, St. Henry Court, St. Henry Lane, St. Ignatius Lane, St. 
Jerome Lane, St. Joachim Lane, St. Joan Lane, St. Jude Lane, St. Katherine Lane, St. Kevin Lane, 
St. Kevin Park Drive, St. Lawrence Lane, St. Leo Lane, St. Leonard Lane, St. Linus Lane, St. 
Luke Lane, St. Marguerite Lane, St. Mark Lane, St. Martha Lane, St. Martin Lane, St. Matthew 
Lane, St. Matthias Lane, St. Michael Lane, St. Michaels Terrace Court, St. Monica Lane, St. 
Myron Lane, St. Nathan Lane, St. Nicholas Court, St. Philip Lane, St. Pius Lane, St. Raphael 
Lane, St. Regina Lane, St. Richard Lane, St. Robert Lane, St. Sebastian Lane, St. Shawn Lane, St. 
Stephen Lane, St. Timothy Lane, St. Veronica Court, St. Williams Lane, St. Xavier Lane, 
Stephens Place, Sue Court, Theresa Avenue, Townley Drive, Tropic Drive, We Avenue, Wendy 
Lane, Westridge Lane, and Wright Avenue.  

 
 



 

 

Metro Transportation Project II 
 
1. Installation of additional bus shelters or enhancement of existing bus shelters along St. Charles 

Rock Road within St. Ann, which bus shelters may be lighted shelters or smart shelters, and 
improved transit access to The Crossing at Northwest Development, such as a transit station or 
enhanced bus shelter. 

 
 

In accordance with the Act, the Additional Transportation Project includes all costs necessary or 
incidental to fund, promote, plan, design, construct, improve, maintain, and operate the St. Ann 
Transportation Project II and the Metro Transportation Project II, or to assist in such activities, including 
without limitation:  

(a) costs of all estimates, studies, surveys, plans, drawings, reports, tests, specifications and 
other preliminary investigations of architects, appraisers, surveyors and engineers;  

(b) all professional service costs, including without limitation architectural, engineering, 
legal, financial, planning, design, development, project or construction management or 
special services incurred;  

(c) costs of acquisition, settlement and transfer of rights-of-way, easements, leases and other 
interests in real property;  

(d) costs of demolition of buildings and improvements; the clearing, excavation, earthwork, 
backfill and grading of land; site preparation; utility relocation; erosion, drainage and 
storm water control; storm sewers; and waterproofing;  

(e) costs of financing, underwriters’ fees and discounts, costs of printing any notes, bonds or 
other obligations and any official statements relating thereto, costs of credit enhancement, 
if any, interest, capitalized interest, debt service reserves and the fees of any rating 
agency, placement fees, costs of issuance;  

(f) costs of insurance, performance bonds and guarantees;  

(g) costs of pavement, curbs, striping, gutters, sidewalks, pavers, landscaping, planters, tree 
grates, irrigation and water features, bicycle racks, pedestrian benches, canopies, street 
lighting, retaining walls, shoring and piers, handrails, guardrails and other railing, 
including without limitation any architectural or decorative treatments related to such 
items; and  

(h) costs of construction of any bridge, street, road, highway, access road, interchange, 
intersection, signing, signalization and optimization thereof, parking lot, bus stop, station, 
or garage. 

 



 

 
 

 

 

Board of Aldermen Agenda Memorandum No. 5 
 
TO: The Honorable Michael Corcoran and Board of Aldermen 
 
DATE:  February 6, 2017 
 
RE: Approval of Monthly Reports & Warrant List 
 
 
They are attached. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 
Matthew K. Conley 
City Administrator\Clerk 
 
















